FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA.

CLERIC SUPPLIES OUR

MARY JO KELLY,

Wife/Appellant,

By **1** (1)

v.

DISTRICT COURT
APPEAL NO.: 89-02755

WILLIAM KELLY,

Husband/Appellee.

AMENDED APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Philip S. Prosch

SURFUS & PROSCH 150 East Avenue South Sarasota, Florida 34230 (813) 954-4517 Attorneys for Appellant

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

The statement of case and facts, as outlined in the district court's opinion, from which rehearing was taken are as follows. The parties were divorced in 1982. At the time of the divorce, the Wife was awarded exclusive use and possession of the marital home until the parties minor child reached her majority. Upon the child's attaining age eighteen, the trial court, via supplemental final judgment, ordered an equal division of the proceeds of the sale of the property. However, in its order the court refused to credit the Wife one-half the mortgage payments and necessary expenses for repairs and maintenance on the grounds that the Husband was entitled to a set-off of one-half of the home's rental value for that time in which the Wife and child were in possession. The district court reversed.

In reviewing the original final judgment, the district court noted that the alimony and support clauses provided for the Wife's exclusive use and possession of the marital home until the child attained eighteen years of age at which time the house should be sold and the equity divided equally. Just prior to the child attaining her majority, the Wife sought credit for "carrying expenses". The Husband counterclaimed alleging set-off for rental value against the Wife's claim. The trial court found that the rental value of the home during the time in issue was at least equivalent to the amounts paid by the Wife for mortgage and repairs. Consequently, the trial judge directed that the property

be sold and the proceeds divided equally, essentially allowing the Husband's set-off claim to cancel the Wife's claim for contribution.

In reversing, the district court found that the mortgage payments and expenditures for maintenance made by the Wife enhance the equity of both parties so to allow the Husband to avoid paying his proportionate share would enhance his equity beyond that contemplated by the final judgment of dissolution. Moreover, the court found that the Husband was not ousted from possession but rather the Wife's possession was a facet of child support. Consequently, because his lack of possession was not adverse, he was not deprived of any right to possession of the premises. It follows then that he had no right to a set-off against the Wife's claim for "carrying expenses". However, in its opinion rendered August 8, 1990, the district court found that the Wife's entitlement was limited exclusively to principal payments on the mortgage debt and did not include interest payments.

On August 15, 1990, Appellant sought rehearing and clarification on the court's disallowing interest reimbursement contrary to other case law in Florida providing for same. A reply to the motion for rehearing and clarification was filed by the Husband which noted in summary that there were cases from the other districts which went both ways on the question.

An opinion was filed October 12, 1990, on the motion for rehearing denying said motion. Therein the court found that while interest is a necessary component of mortgage payments, it does not enhance an owner's equity. Consequently, the Wife should be responsible for the interest payments, and in support thereof cites case law from the third district. However, the court further notes that to the extent the second district conflicts with the fourth district, they disagree with the fourth district.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

When one spouse is in possession of the marital domicile as a consequence of Court Order for the benefit of the parties minor children, such does not constitute an adverse ouster. Consequently, when the marital domicile becomes sold, the lawful occupant is entitled to reimbursement for one-half of the mortgage payments made during occupancy including interest. This holding is found in <u>lodice v. Scoville</u>, 460 So.2d 576 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984). However, that holding clearly conflicts with the holding herein where the Second District ruled that the lawful occupant was not entitled to reimbursement for interest.

JURISDICTIONAL ISSUES

WHETHER THE PRESENT DECISION EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH IODICE V. SCOVILLE, 460 So. 2d 576 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984).

The second district ruled in the present case that the final judgment of dissolution in this cause did not allow Appellee credit for the rental value of property during Appellant's use and occupancy thereof because said occupancy was for the benefit of the parties minor child and pursuant to court order. Further, the court found that the former Wife was entitled to reimbursement for one-half of the principal payments which she made on the mortgage and for repairs and maintenance. To that extent, this holding squares with the rationale outlined in Iodice v. Scoville, 460 So.2d 576 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984). However, thereafter the two separate with regards to entitlement to reimbursement for interest payments.

The second district rationalized that Appellant ought not to be allowed consideration for that portion of the mortgage payment which represented interest because it did not enhance the Appellee's equity not withstanding it being a necessary component of the mortgage payment. In Iodice, the court held to the contrary. That court found nothing in the record to justify denying reimbursement for the interest payments made along with the principal. In that case, like the present case, the former Husband's possession of the marital home was via court order for the benefit of their children and did not constitute an adverse ouster, the former Wife therein was disallowed any set-off for fair

rental value during former Husband's use and occupancy thereof.

<u>Iodice</u> conflicts with the present case and cannot be distinguished on alternative grounds. Further, the district court in this case noted that, to the extent that <u>Iodice</u> conflicts, they disagree with the fourth district. The purported holding in <u>Iodice</u> and that of the present case were decided on the same grounds and expressly and directly conflict with one another.

CONCLUSION

The instant district court decision expressly and directly conflicts with another district court decision. Review should be granted.