original 45
FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MARY JO KELLY,

Wife/Petitioner,

-vs-

WILLIAM KELLY,

Husband/Respondent.

CLERK, SUP X ME TOUR

Deputy Clerk

DCA-2 CASE NO. 89-02755

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.

76,946

RESPONDENT'S AMENDED BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES E. AKER
Icard, Merrill, Cullis,
Timm, Furen & Ginsburg, P.A.
2033 Main Street, Suite 600
Sarasota, FL 34237
(813) 366-8100
Florida Bar No. 131026
Attorney for Husband/Respondent

###

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent agrees with Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts.

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The case at bar does <u>not</u> expressly and directly conflict with <u>Iodice v. Scoville</u>, because both the case at bar wherein the court made its decision based upon the "totality of the circumstances" and in <u>Iodice v. Scoville</u>, wherein the court based its decision on the entire record, the issue whether a party would be entitled to reimbursement for interest payments made is based upon the discretion of the court. Reimbursement for interest expenses is a discretionary matter and therefore the decisions of the two district courts of appeal are not expressly and directly in conflict with each other. Furthermore, this case is not of such significance to cause this court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction for this minor issue.

#### JURISDICTIONAL ISSUES

WHETHER THE PRESENT DECISION EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH <u>Iodice v. Scoville</u>, 460 So.2d 576 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984) and WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETION TO REVIEW THIS MATTER.

Petitioner seeks the discretionary jurisdiction of this court pursuant to Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). That subsection of the rule allows this court to review decisions which expressly and directly conflict with the decision of other district court of appeals if this court wishes to exercise its discretion to do so.

The case at bar does <u>not</u> expressly and directly conflict with <u>Iodice v. Scoville</u>. In the case at bar, the court stated, "We think that under the <u>totality of the circumstances</u> the wife should be responsible for the interest payments." (Emphasis added.) The Second District Court of Appeal considered the entire record, allowed the wife contribution for the principal payments that she had made on the mortgage, but felt under the totality of the circumstances she should be denied reimbursement for the interest payments because these payments did not increase the husband's equity. The Second District also noted that the husband had received no compensation for his court ordered loss of enjoyment of the jointly owned property.

The Second District did not state that its decision conflicted with <u>Iodice v. Scoville</u>. (The Petitioner also filed a Motion with the Second District under Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(vi) requesting certification to this court that the Second District's decision was in direct conflict with <u>Iodice</u>. The Second District entered an Order on November 20, 1990 denying certification of any conflict.

In Iodice, the trial court and the appellate court found the husband entitled to reimbursement for one-half the principal payments he had made on the mortgage and then stated, "We find nothing in the record to justify denying him reimbursement of the interest payments." (Emphasis added.) The court in <a href="Iodice">Iodice</a> did not state that it was a black letter rule of law that the party in possession was automatically entitled to reimbursement of interest payments. It merely found nothing in the record in that case to justify denying the interest reimbursement. Both the Second District in considering the "totality of the circumstances" and the Fourth District in <a>Iodice</a> in considering "the record" indicate that interest reimbursement of payments in these cases discretionary item to be allocated in a matrimonial case by the trial court based upon the totality of the circumstances. It may be awarded in some cases and denied in others. Accordingly, the decision in the case at bar does not conflict with <u>Iodice v.</u> Scoville.

Treatment of interest differently depending upon the totality of the circumstances is consistent with <u>Canakaris v. Canakaris</u>, 382 So.2d 1197 (Fla. 1980) in which this court stated the appellate court should avoid establishing inflexible rules that make achievement of equity between the parties difficult and that the remedies used by the trial court be reviewed by the appellate courts as a whole, rather than independently. That is the way the Second District reviewed the interest issue in this matter. In considering the totality of the circumstances, the Second District

Court felt that the wife should not receive reimbursement for the interest payments when the husband had received no compensation for his court ordered loss of enjoyment of the jointly owned home.

Even <u>assuming arguendo</u> there were express and direct conflict between the case at bar and <u>Iodice v. Scoville</u>, undersigned counsel respectfully submits that this single conflict is not of such significance to cause this court to exercise discretionary jurisdiction for this minor issue.

# CONCLUSION

Respondent requests that discretionary jurisdiction be denied.